
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 

TUESDAY, 21 MARCH 2017 
 
12 NOON (OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL, WHICHEVER IS THE 
LATER)  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 28 February 2017  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4   St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior schools Amalgamation  (Pages 5 - 34) 
Report by Director of Children’s Services 
 

5   Shinewater Primary School, Eastbourne change of age range  (Pages 35 - 38) 
Report by Director of Children’s Services 
 

6   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 13 March 2017 
 
Contact Hannah Matthews, 01273 335138,  
 
Email:  hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITY 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability held at County Hall, Lewes on 28 February 2017. 
 

 
Councillor Field spoke on item 6 (see minute 29) 
Councillor Shuttleworth spoke on items 5 and 6 (see minutes 28 and 29) 
 
25 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 16 JANUARY 2017  
 
25.1 Councillor Bennett approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 
January 2017. 
 
 
26 REPORTS  
 
26.1 Copies of the reports referred to below are contained in the Minute book.  
 
 
27 SCHOOL AGE RANGE CHANGE - TELSCOMBE CLIFFS PRIMARY SCHOOL  
 
27.1 The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which sought approval to lower the 
age range at Telscombe Cliffs Community Primary School.  
 
27.2 RESOLVED to authorise the change of age range at Telscombe Cliffs Community 
Primary School from 4-11 to 2-11 with effect from 1 April 2017. 
 
Reasons 
 
27.3 Lowering the age range will help to build on work already done by the school and 
nursery provider, ensuring a fully integrated Early Years Foundation Stage to help secure good 
outcomes for all children.   
 
 
28 APPROVAL OF THE DSG (DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT) FOR 2017/18  
 
28.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which 
sought approval for the allocation of the Dedicated Schools Grant for 2017/18, including the 
inter block transfers between the Schools Block, High Needs Block and Early Years Block.  
 
28.2  RESOLVED to approve the allocation of the DSG budget for 2017/18, including the 
following inter block transfers: 
 

 £4.3m inter block transfer from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block; and 

 £22,800 inter block transfer from the Schools Block to the Early Years Block.  
 
Reasons 
 
28.3 The pressures in the High Needs Block are significant and the additional funding is 
required to support the following areas: 
 

 £600k to support school top up funding where there has been an increase in demand on 
top of increases in the band funding for children with EHCP’s. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 £1.3m to support the increase in requests for new and on-going placements with Post 16 
providers.  

 £2.4m to support the increase in demand for on-going placements post-19 within high 
cost independent special schools. 
 

28.4 To maintain the Council’s commitment to the most vulnerable two year olds, an inter 
block transfer of £22,800 is requested for approval by Lead Member. This is to enable continued 
support to Band A children with an additional £0.80 per hour. 
 
 
29 ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2018/19  
 
29.1 The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which sought approval for admission 
arrangements for the 2018/19 school year. 
  
29.2       RESOLVED:               (1) to agree the proposed admission arrangements for the 
2017/18 school year, including the following changes to the existing arrangements: 
 

 To make a change to the community area for Eastbourne primary schools so that the 
Polegate and Willingdon area outside the borough boundary becomes a separate 
community area as detailed in paragraphs 2.1 – 2.5 below;  

 To change the definition of ‘Looked After Children’ in the County Council’s admission 
arrangements to include children accommodated under section 20 of the Children Act 
1989; and  

 Approve an application being made to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator for an in-
year variation to enlarge the community area for Iford & Kingston CE Primary School to 
encompass the community area currently served by Rodmell CE Primary School in the 
event that a decision is taken by Cabinet in September 2017 to close Rodmell CE 
Primary School on 31 August 2018. 
 

(2) agree the following:  
 

 The admission priorities as set out in Appendix 1 of the report 

 The admission numbers as set out in Appendix 3 of the report 

 The co-ordinated schemes as set out in Appendix 4 of the report. 
 
Reasons 
 
29.3 East Sussex County Council has a statutory duty to determine its admission 
arrangements and consult on any proposed changes. Following consultation, it is the 
responsibility of the Lead Member to determine the admission arrangements for the school year 
2018/19. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and 

Disability 
 
Date:   21 March 2017 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report:  St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior Schools amalgamation  
 
Purpose of report: To seek Lead Member approval to amalgamate St Thomas a Becket 

Catholic Infant School and St Thomas a Becket Catholic Junior 
School to create an all-through primary school. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the closure of St Thomas a Becket 
Catholic Junior School on 31 August 2017 and to alter the upper age limit of St Thomas a 
Becket Catholic Infant School from 4 - 7 to 4 - 11 with effect from 1 September 2017 in 
order to create an all-through primary school. 

 
 

1 Background  
1.1 The Governing Body of St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior Schools recently 
consulted on a proposal to amalgamate the two schools to create an all-through primary school 
with effect from 1 September 2017.  Such a change would align the new school with Diocesan 
policy regarding all-through primary schools.  The governing body believes that the longer-term 
future for Catholic education in the area can best be achieved through amalgamating the two 
schools into one all-through primary school, operating on the same site.  All the children from 
ages 4-11 in the two existing schools would be part of one school. 
 
1.2 The proposal is in line with the East Sussex County Council’s School Organisation Policy 
which supports the amalgamation of infant and junior schools to form all-through primary schools. 
 
2 Supporting information 
2.1 The governing body consulted with interested parties between 7 November and 16 
December 2016.  In all, 55 responses were received during the consultation, of which 48 (87%) 
were in support of the proposal and 7 (13%) were against it. 
 
2.2 On 6 January 2017, the Governing Body agreed to publish statutory notices in relation to 
the proposal.  The statutory notice was published on 27 January 2017 in the Eastbourne Herald 
and at the main entrances to the school.  The notice and full proposal was also available on the 
school’s website. 
 
2.3 Publication of the notice was followed by a four-week period of representation, when 
comments or objections could be made to the Governing Body.  By the end of the representation 
period, no comments or objections had been received. 
 
2.4 The Governing Body met on 1 March 2017 to consider the outcome of the representation 
period and make a recommendation to the Lead Member.  The Governing Body believes the 
proposal to amalgamate St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior schools is in accordance 
with the Diocese of Arundel and Brighton and East Sussex County Council’s policies and has 
support locally.  In light of these factors, the Governing Body recommends that the proposed 
amalgamation of the two schools is approved.  A copy of the Governing Body report is attached 
at Appendix A.  The report includes a copy of the consultation document, the outcome of the 
consultation and copies of the statutory notice and full proposal. 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



3. Factors to be considered by the decision maker and types of decision 
3.1 Proposed changes to the organisation of maintained schools have to follow a prescribed 
process established in Sections 15 and 19(1) of the Education and Inspections Act 2006 (as 
amended by the Education Act 2011) and the School Organisation (Establishment and 
Discontinuance of Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 and the School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013.  
 
3.2      The process set out above complied with these requirements. 

 
3.3 The regulations set out a number of factors to which the Lead Member should have 
regard before making a final decision on the proposal.  These are set out in Appendix B. 
 
4. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  
4.1 In conclusion, the proposal to amalgamate St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior 
Schools would align the new school with Diocesan policy regarding all-through primary schools.  
The governing body believes that the longer-term future for Catholic education in the area can 
best be achieved through amalgamating the two schools into one all-through primary school, 
operating on the same site.  The proposal is in line with East Sussex County Council’s School 
Organisation Policy which supports the amalgamation of infant and junior schools. 
 
4.2 For these reasons, the Lead Member is recommended to approve the closure of St 
Thomas a Becket Catholic Junior School on 31 August 2017 and to alter the upper age limit at St 
Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant School from 4-7 to 4-11 with effect from 1 September 2017 in 
order to establish an all-through primary school. 
 
 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services  
Contact Officer: Gary Langford, Place Planning Manager  
Tel. No. 01273 481758 
Email: gary.langford@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Guidance for Decision Makers published by the DfE in April 2016 
 
LOCAL MEMBER 
 
Councillor Pat Rodohan  

 

 

Page 6



Page 7

Appendix A



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



  

The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability should have 
regard to the following factors before reaching a final decision on the proposal to amalgamate St 
Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior Schools. 

 
1 Did the published notice comply with 

statutory requirements 
The notice complied with statutory requirements as set out in 3.1 of 
the report.  

2 Are the proposals related to other 
published proposals 

2.2 The proposal to amalgamate St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant 
School and St Thomas a Becket Catholic Junior School is not related 
to other published proposals. 

3 Was consultation carried out prior to 
the publication of notices 

The governing body undertook a period of consultation between 7 
November and 16 December 2016.  

4 Have any particular comments or 
objections been raised during the 
representation period which could 
directly affect the proposals 

No comments or objections were received during the representation 
period. 

5 The effect on education standards 
and diversity of provision 

There will be no effect on education standards and diversity of 
provision.  The new primary school would continue to operate on the 
same site, retaining the existing high standards of Catholicity, 
teaching, learning and governance. 

6 The impact on pupil numbers and 
admissions 

The Governing Body will continue to be the admissions authority.  
The admission number for the new primary school’s reception year 
intake in the first year in which the proposals are implemented is 60. 
 
The primary school’s pupil capacity will be 444 which is equivalent to 
the places currently available at St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant 
School and St Thomas a Becket Catholic Junior School.  The primary 
school will operate on the existing school site from 1 September 
2017, under a single governing body and headteacher. 
 
At the time of the last published school census (October 2016) St 
Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant School had 209 pupils on roll and St 
Thomas a Becket Catholic Junior School had 266 pupil on roll. 
 
All pupils attending the schools on the day of implementation will 
automatically be given a place at the new primary school.  No pupils 
will be displaced by the proposal.  

7 The impact on staff, parents and 
carers, other local schools and the 
local community 

Staff and parents and carers would see very little difference between 
how the infant and junior schools currently work and how a single 
primary school would operate in the future.  The Governing Body is 
not proposing to build a new school; instead the two existing 
buildings would continue to be used in the same way with a single 
headteacher and a single governing body as is now the case. 
 
The main difference for parents and carers would be to remove the 
need for them to apply for a Year 3 place for their child(ren) in the 
junior school.  Instead, once children are admitted to the school in 
Year R they would have a place at the school until the end of Year 6 
when they transfer to secondary school. 

8 School travel There should be no impact on school travel.  The Governing Body is 
not proposing to change the current catchment area boundaries and 
the Council’s transport policy will operate in the same way it does 
currently. 

9 Equalities implications There are no equalities implications arising from the proposal.  The 
great majority of pupils already transfer from the infant school to the 
junior school and this would continue in the new primary school 
without the need for a 7+ admissions exercise. 

10 Other factors On 8 November 2016 St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant School 
was inspected by Ofsted and was found to be a good school.  On this 
basis the Governing Body published proposals to close the junior 
school and alter the age range of the infant school rather than close 
the infant school and alter the age range of the junior school.  This 
was a change from what was initially consulted on but it does not 
change the overall objective of the proposal as it is considered a 
technical change, not a material change. 

Page 33

Appendix B



 

Page 34



 
Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and 

Disability 
 
Date:   21 March 2017 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report:  Shinewater Primary School, Eastbourne change of age range  
 
Purpose of report: To seek Lead Member approval to lower the age range at Shinewater 

Primary School to enable the governing body of the school to provide 
nursery provision for two year olds within current provision. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

The Lead Member is recommended to authorise the change of age range at 
Shinewater Primary School from 3 to 11 to 2 to 11 with effect from 1 April 2017  
 

 
1 Background  
1.1 Shinewater Primary School currently runs early years provision for 3 and 4 year olds.  The 
governing body of the school wishes to support vulnerable families in their care by lowering their 
age range from 3 to 11 to 2 to11. 
 
1.2 The aim of the proposal is to continue to integrate, fully, nursery provision into the Early 
Years Foundation Stage within the school. The governing body wishes to ensure that the nursery 
continues to support the local area and to offer high quality early education delivered by 
experienced and well-trained staff across the Early Years Foundation Stage.  The aim is to build 
on the work already done by the school to secure good outcomes for all children in the future. 
 
2 Supporting information 
2.1 The governing body consulted between 7 November and 2 December 2016 on the 
proposal to lower the school’s age range.  The governing body consulted with staff, families of 
children at the school, the local community and other interested parties. No responses were 
received during the consultation period. 
 
2.2 On 16 January 2017, the Lead Member considered the outcome of the consultation and 
approved the publication of statutory notices in relation to the proposal.  The statutory notice was 
published on 3 February 2017 in the Eastbourne Herald.  The notice was also posted on the 
entrances to the school.  The notice and full proposal was available on the Local Authority’s 
website. 

 
2.3 Publication of the notice was followed by a four-week period of representation, when 
comments or objections could be made to the Local Authority.  At the end of the representation 
period, no comments or objections had been received.  

 
3. Factors to be considered by the decision maker and types of decision 
 
3.1 Proposed changes to the organisation of maintained schools have to follow a prescribed 
process established by the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) 
(England) Regulations 2013.  
 
 3.2      The process set out above complied with these requirements. 

 
3.3 The regulations set out a number of factors to which the Lead Member should have 
regard before making a final decision on the proposed changes.  These are set out in Appendix 
A. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



4. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  
4.1 The proposal to lower the age range at Shinewater Primary School will help the school to 
support vulnerable families in their care and build on work already done by the school, ensuring a 
fully integrated Early Years Foundation Stage to help secure good outcomes for all children. 
 
4.2 For this reason, the Lead Member is recommended to authorise the change of age range 
at Shinewater Primary School from 3 to 11 to 2 to 11 with effect from 1 April 2017 
 
 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services  
Contact Officer: Jane Spice, EYEE Manager 
Tel. No. 01323 747425 
Email: jane.spice@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Lead Member report and minute from 16 January 2017: 
http://esmoderngov01v/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3089&Ver=4 
 
 
LOCAL MEMBER 
Councillor Alan Shuttleworth  
 

Page 36

mailto:jane.spice@eastsussex.gov.uk
http://esmoderngov01v/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3089&Ver=4


APPENDIX A  

The Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
should have regard to the following factors before reaching a final decision on the 
proposed change of age range at Shinewater Primary School. 

 
1 Did the published notice 

comply with statutory 
requirements 

The notice complied with statutory requirements as set out in 3.1 of the 
report.  

2 Are the proposals related to 
other published proposals 

2.2 The proposal to lower the age range at Shinewater Primary School is not 
related to other published proposals. 

3 Was consultation carried out 
prior to the publication of 
notices 

The governing body of the school undertook a period of consultation 

between 7
th
 November and 2

nd
 December 2016 on a proposal to lower the 

school’s age range from 3-11 to 2-11 to allow them to take two year olds in 
the nursery provision.  

 

4 Have any particular comments 
or objections been raised 
during the representation 
period which could directly 
affect the proposals 

No comments or objections were received during the representation period. 

5 The effect on education 
standards and diversity of 
provision in the local area. 

The Local Authority does not believe the proposal will have an impact on 

education standards and diversity of provision in the local area as it is about 

enabling the school to support the most vulnerable families in its local 

community to secure good outcomes for all children. 

6 The demand for places The proposal would, in the first instance, provide four places for two year 

old children in the local community giving families greater access to early 

years provision. The remaining places will be available to three and four 

year olds.    

7 The impact on school size, 
premises and funding 

The proposal does not require a change to the premises and as such will 
not require funding.  The school will remain at its current size.  

8 National curriculum Shinewater Primary school will deliver the Early Years Foundation Stage for 
children aged 2-5 years. 

9 Equal opportunities issues The Local Authority does not believe there are equality impacts arising from 
the proposed changes.   
 
The proposal will have a positive impact by creating opportunities for 
children and families to access early years provision within their local area 
that meets their needs. 

10 Community cohesion The Local Authority believes that the proposal will enhance community 
cohesion by enabling more local children and their families to access early 
years provision at the school. 

11 Travel and accessibility The Local Authority does not believe the proposal will have any impact on 
travel and accessibility as the nursery provision will remain in its current 
location. 

 

 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 28 February 2017
	4 St Thomas a Becket Catholic Infant and Junior schools Amalgamation
	Item 4 - Appendix A
	Item 4 - Appendix B

	5 Shinewater Primary School, Eastbourne change of age range

